JUDICIAL SELECTION COMMISSION RULES

Published by the Supreme Court of the State of Hawai'i for the Judicial Selection Commission

Adopted by the Commission April 23, 1979
With Amendments as Noted
pursuant to Article VI, Section 4 of the
Hawai'i State Constitution

The Judiciary State of Hawai'i

JUDICIAL SELECTION COMMISSION RULES

Table of Contents

PREAMBLE				
Rule 1.	COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON			
Rule 2.	COMMISSION VICE-CHAIRPERSON			
Rule 3.	COMMISSION SECRETARY			
Rule 4.	TERMS OF OFFICE			
Rule 5.	CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COMMISSION MEMBERS			
	SECTION ONE: ABUSE OF POSITION			
	SECTION TWO: CONFIDENTIALITY			
	SECTION THREE: CONFLICT OF INTEREST			
Rule 6.	COMMISSION MEETINGS			
Rule 7.	RECRUITMENT OF APPLICANTS, NOTICE			
Rule 8.	APPLICATIONS AND PRELIMINARY SCREENING OF APPLICANTS			
Rule 9.	INTERVIEWS AND INVESTIGATIONS			
Rule 10.	EVALUATION OF APPLICANTS AND PETITIONERS			
Rule 11.	SELECTION OF NOMINEES			
Rule 12.	RETENTION OF PETITIONERS			
Rule 13.	TRANSMITTAL TO THE APPOINTING AUTHORITY			

APPENDIX

(This page intentionally left blank.)

ii (Release: 06/21)

PREAMBLE

Judicial selection commissioners hold positions of public trust and shall conduct themselves in a manner which reflects credit upon the judicial selection process. Pursuant to Article VI, Section 4 of the Hawai'i State Constitution, the commission shall adopt rules which shall have the full force and effect of law.

(Amended and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 1. COMMISSION CHAIRPERSON

The commission shall select one of its members as chairperson. The chairperson of the commission shall adhere to the Rules for the Judicial Selection Commission and shall preside at any meeting of the commission and shall perform such additional acts and functions as authorized by the commission.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013; further amended and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 2. COMMISSION VICE-CHAIRPERSON

The commission shall select one of its members as the vice-chairperson. The vice-chairperson shall serve in the absence of the chairperson. In the event that the chairperson is an attorney, the vice-chairperson shall be a non-attorney of the commission. If the chairperson is not an attorney, the vice-chairperson shall be an attorney.

(Amended and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 3. COMMISSION SECRETARY

The commission shall select one of its members as secretary. The secretary shall conduct and verify the voting of the commission. In the secretary's absence, the commission shall choose a member to be acting secretary. The duties may be delegated to a staff member.

(Amended and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 4. TERMS OF OFFICE

The terms of office of the chairperson, vicechairperson and secretary shall be for two years. Any officer may be removed prior to the expiration of the officer's term of office upon a majority vote of the commission.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013; further amended 06/22/2021, effective 07/01/2021)

Rule 5. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COMMISSION MEMBERS

SECTION ONE: ABUSE OF POSITION

A. No commissioner shall use or attempt to use the commissioner's official position to secure privileges or exemptions for the commissioner or others.

(Amended 06/22/2021, effective 07/01/2021)

- **B.** No commissioner shall attempt, solicit, or agree to accept any gift, favor or anything of value based upon any understanding, either explicit or implicit, that the official actions, decisions or judgment of any commissioner would be influenced thereby. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a commissioner from accepting a public award presented in recognition of public service.
- **C.** No commissioner shall request or accept any fee or compensation, on commission related matters.
- **D.** Each commissioner shall use the resources, property and funds under the commissioner's official control judiciously and solely in accordance with prescribed statutory and regulatory procedures.
- E. Each commissioner shall immediately report to the Judicial Selection Commission any attempt to induce the commissioner to violate any of the standards set out above.

(Amended 06/22/2021, effective 07/01/2021)

SECTION TWO: CONFIDENTIALITY

A. Under the Constitution of the State of Hawai'i, the commission's deliberations must be confidential. To keep deliberations confidential, information that shall be kept confidential and shall not be disclosed outside of any commission meeting shall include, but not be limited to: information relating to the identity of any applicant (except for applicants for the Intermediate Court of Appeals and Supreme Court); information received from or about current or former applicants and petitioners; the identity of informational sources; and any communications among or votes by commissioners that have transpired in the course of their deliberations on any subject.

(Release: 06/22) **JSCR--1**

The confidentiality requirements set forth herein shall not prohibit any commissioner from disclosing, to all sitting commissioners at the commission meeting, such information which was previously received at a prior commission meeting.

(Amended and effective 11/15/2011; further amended and effective 2/13/2013; further amended and effective 1/24/2014; further amended and effective 03/16/2022)

B. This mandate of confidentiality survives commissioners' terms of office and must be observed in perpetuity.

(Amended and effective 11/15/2011)

C. The commission shall release lists of its nominees for judicial office concurrent with its submission of each list to the appointing authority.

(Amended and effective 11/15/2011)

SECTION THREE: CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. Every commissioner shall avoid conflicts of interest in the performance of commission duties. Every commissioner is required to exercise diligence in becoming aware of conflicts of interest, and in disclosing any conflicts to the commission. If a commissioner knows of any personal, business, or legal relationship that a commissioner may have with an applicant or petitioner, including any legal proceeding in which a commissioner is appearing as a party or counsel before an applicant or petitioner, the commissioner must report this fact to the commission. The commission shall then decide the extent to which the involved commissioner shall participate in the proceedings concerning said applicant or petitioner. In the event that a commissioner does not vote, the fact that a commissioner did not vote may be announced publicly. The commission may disclose its decision on this issue.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013)

- **B.** No commissioner shall participate in any retention proceeding regarding a judge or justice who has a petition for retention pending before the commission pursuant to Rule 12 if that commissioner has a substantive matter pending before that judge or justice.
- **C.** No commissioner shall take an active part in political management or in political campaigns.

D. A commissioner shall consider each applicant and petitioner for a judicial office in an impartial, objective manner. No commissioner shall discriminate on the basis of nor manifest, by words or conduct, bias or prejudice based on race, religion, sex, national origin, gender, marital status, sexual orientation or political affiliation in the conduct of the business of the commission.

Rule 6. COMMISSION MEETINGS

A. Meetings of the commission may be called by the chairperson or a majority of the members by written notice to the other members specifying the time and place of meeting. Such notice shall be transmitted in writing at least seven days before the time specified, except that a meeting may be held on shorter notice if the notice specifies that the meeting will be an emergency meeting. Notice of meeting may be waived by any commissioner either before or after the meeting takes place; and attendance at a meeting by any member shall constitute a waiver of notice by such member unless the member shall, at or promptly after the beginning of such meeting, object to the holding of the meeting on the ground of lack of, or insufficiency of, notice. Except as otherwise provided in Rule 6, subsection E., meetings shall be in person.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013; further amended 06/22/2021, effective 07/01/2021; further amended and effective 11/09/21)

- **B.** Meetings of the commission may be held without notice at any time or place whenever the meeting is one as to which notice is waived by all members or whenever the commission at a previous meeting shall have designated the time and place for such a meeting.
- C. The chairperson shall call at least one meeting each year for the principal purpose of reviewing and/or amending commission rules and operating procedures and briefing new commissioners of the rules and operating procedures.
- **D.** A quorum for the commission shall be five commissioners. The commission shall act by majority vote of all commissioners in all actions.

JSCR--2 (Release: 06/22)

- **E.** A majority of the commissioners may call for a meeting of the commission to be conducted remotely by interactive conference where the nature of the business to be conducted is:
- 1. Reviewing and/or amending commission rules and operating procedures;
- 2. Briefing new commissioners of commission rules and operating procedures;
 - 3. Electing of officers;
- 4. Discussing communications received by the commission from appointing and/or confirming authorities:
- 5. Appointment of a judicial candidate as provided in Article VI, Section 3, of the Constitution of the State of Hawai'i;
- 6. Interviews and investigations and selection of nominees pursuant to Rules 9 and 11, and determinations as to retention pursuant to Rule 12, provided that a majority of the members determines there are extenuating circumstances that warrant remote participation such as acts of God, perils of health, safety, or welfare, and other extreme emergences.

The interactive conference technology used by the commission must allow interaction among all commissioners and others participating in the meeting or in the conduct of business. Any commissioner participating in a meeting by interactive conference technology shall be considered present at the meeting for the purpose of determining compliance with quorum and voting requirements of the commission.

(Added and effective 06/03/2020; further amended and effective 10/19/2021; further amended and effective 11/09/2021; further amended and effective 03/16/2022)

F. In the event the chairperson is unable to perform their duties as chairperson, the vice-chairperson will serve as acting chairperson until the commission is able to meet and select by majority vote, a new chairperson. If both the chairperson and vice-chairperson are unable to perform their duties as chairperson, the secretary will serve as acting chairperson until the commission is able to meet and select by majority vote, a new chairperson. If none of the commission officers are either present or are unable to perform their duties as the chairperson, the commission will select by majority vote, one of the remaining commissioners to be the new chairperson.

(Added and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 7. RECRUITMENT OF APPLICANTS, NOTICE

A. Commissioners may actively seek out and encourage qualified individuals to apply for judicial office.

(Amended and effective 10/19/2021)

B. Upon notification or knowledge that a vacancy has occurred or will occur, the chairperson shall inform the other members of the commission of the vacancy. The commission shall publicize the vacancy.

(Amended and effective 10/19/2021)

Rule 8. APPLICATIONS AND PRELIMINARY SCREENING OF APPLICANTS

- **A.** Applicants who meet the constitutional qualifications for appointment shall receive and respond to forms of applications as prescribed by the commission.
- **B.** After it receives the applications, the commission may by a majority vote eliminate from further consideration those applicants whom it evaluates to be unqualified for judicial office. A list of the remaining applicants may be prepared and the commission may gather additional information on each applicant as it deems appropriate.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013)

C. The chairperson may designate one or more commissioners to review the qualifications of the applicants whose names appear on the list of remaining applicants prepared pursuant to Rule 8B. The designated commissioner or commissioners shall prepare a list recommending the names of applicants whom the commission should interview, the names of applicants who should not be further considered by the commission, and the names of applicants the commission should further consider for judicial office. In the event of such designations, the commission shall determine by a majority vote whether or not to accept or reject the recommendations.

(Amended and effective 2/13/2013)

(Release: 06/22)

JSCR-3

Rule 9. INTERVIEWS AND INVESTIGATIONS

The commission may interview applicants and petitioners and conduct investigations into their backgrounds and qualifications. The chairperson may designate one or more commissioners to interview and investigate applicants and petitioners. Using the commission's form of application or petition or as the case may be, as a starting point, the designees may obtain as much information on the applicant or petitioner as possible from available sources. The commission may retain such services as it deems necessary and appropriate to conduct investigations.

Rule 10. EVALUATION OF APPLICANTS AND PETITIONERS

- **A.** The commission shall consider each applicant's and petitioner's background, professional skills and character, and may give consideration to the following qualities.
 - (1) integrity and moral courage
 - (2) legal ability and experience
 - (3) intelligence and wisdom
 - (4) compassion and fairness
 - (5) diligence and decisiveness
 - (6) judicial temperament
- (7) such other qualities that the commission deems appropriate

Rule 11. SELECTION OF NOMINEES

- **A.** Oral or written reports on the investigations and interviews conducted pursuant to Rule 9 shall be made to the commission. Thereafter, the chairperson shall open the meeting to a discussion of each applicant's qualifications for judicial office.
- **B.** When the commission has completed its evaluation of applications for judicial office, it shall meet for the purpose of selecting not less than four and not more than six nominees for a vacancy in the office of chief justice, supreme court, intermediate appellate court and circuit courts. The commission shall select not less than six nominees for a vacancy in the district courts.

(Amended and effective 6/25/2009)

C. The commission members shall vote by secret ballot. Prior to any vote, the commission members may engage in discussion as to the qualifications or lack thereof of any applicant. Each member shall vote to select the number of qualified nominees for any given judicial office vacancy

required under Rule 11B. In the event that the initial ballot produces less than the stipulated number of nominees, voting shall continue for the remaining nominee positions; provided, however, that each nominee must have been selected by a majority vote of nine commissioners. An applicant's name may be included on more than one list of nominees for different judicial office vacancies. The names of the nominees selected by the commission shall be transmitted pursuant to Rule 13.

(Amended and effective 6/25/2009; further amended and effective 03/16/2022)

Rule 12. RETENTION OF PETITIONERS

- A. When a judge or justice petitions the commission pursuant to Section 3 of Article VI of the Constitution of the State of Hawai'i to be retained in office, the commission shall promptly upon receipt of such petition commence an investigation into qualifications of the petitioner for continued judicial office. Every petitioner shall complete forms prescribed by the commission. The petitioner, by giving notice to the commission, may withdraw the petition for retention before the issuance of an order by the commission under Rule 12F.
- **B.** The commission shall publicize the fact that the judge or justice has petitioned for retention in such a manner as it deems appropriate to the need that all persons who might have an interest in the subject matter be given an opportunity to submit their views.
- C. At any meeting of the commission held for the purpose of considering a petition filed pursuant to this rule, the chairperson or acting chairperson may administer oaths and affirmations to any person testifying at such meetings.
- **D.** The commission may compel by subpoena the attendance of witnesses by hearings under this rule and the production of pertinent books, papers and documents. Writs of subpoena shall be signed by the chair or acting chair and attested to by the secretary or acting secretary. The circuit court of any circuit in which a subpoena is served or in which the attendance is required may, upon proper application, enforce the attendance and testimony of any witness and the production of any documents so subpoenaed. Subpoena and witness fees and mileage shall be the same as in civil cases in the circuit courts.

JSCR--4 (Release: 06/22)

E. The commission shall interview the petitioner and may hold hearings which, at the discretion of the commission, may be either opened or closed to the public and which interested parties may testify before the commission; provided, however, that the opening of such hearing shall preserve and enforce the confidentiality requirements of Rule 5. Section Two. A of these rules.

The commission shall make a determination that the petitioner should or should not be retained in office, and the commission shall attempt to make its decision within ninety days prior to the expiration of the petitioner's then current term of office. Voting by the commissioners on the question of the granting or denial of the petition shall be by secret ballot. Prior to voting, the commission members may engage in discussion as to whether the petitioner should or should not be retained. The term of a petitioner may not be extended except by a majority vote of the commissioners as provided by Rule 6D.

(Amended and effective 10/19/21; further amended and effective 11/09/2021; further amended and effective 3/16/2022)

F. The commission shall issue an order upon making a determination that the petitioner should or should not be retained in office. The order shall renew the term of office of the petitioner for the period provided by law if the determination is that the petitioner should be retained in office. The order shall state that the petition has been denied if the determination is that the petitioner should not be retained in office.

Rule 13. TRANSMITTAL TO THE APPOINTING AUTHORITY

A. The names of the nominees, listed in alphabetical order, shall be hand-delivered or delivered through interactive conference technology or other electronic means to the appointing authority within 30 days following the selection of nominees under Rule 11.

(Amended 10/19/2021 (effective for selections made after 01/01/22); further amended and effective 11/09/2021)

B. No other information shall be forwarded to the appointing authority, except that the commission may submit to the appointing authority a factual summary of the nominee's background based on material provided by the nominees, and the commission may consult with the appointing authority on request.

APPENDIX THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF HAWAI'I as amended and in force July 1, 2021

[ARTICLE VI]

APPOINTMENT OF JUSTICES AND JUDGES

SECTION 3. The governor, with the consent of the senate, shall fill a vacancy in the office of the chief justice, supreme court, intermediate appellate court and circuit courts, by appointing a person from a list of not less than four, and not more than six, nominees for the vacancy, presented to the governor by the judicial selection commission. If the governor fails to make any appointment within thirty days of presentation, or within ten days of the senate's rejection of any previous appointment, the appointment shall be made by the judicial selection commission from the list with the consent of the senate. If the senate fails to reject any appointment within thirty days thereof, it shall be deemed to have given its consent to such appointment. If the senate shall reject any appointment, the governor shall make another appointment from the list within ten days The same appointment and consent procedure shall be followed until a valid appointment has been made, or failing this, the commission shall make the appointment from the list, without senate consent. The chief justice, with the consent of the senate, shall fill a vacancy in the district courts by appointing a person from a list of not less than six nominees for the vacancy presented by the judicial selection commission. If the chief justice fails to make the appointment within thirty days of presentation, or within ten days of the senate's rejection of any previous appointment, the appointment shall be made by the judicial selection commission from the list with the consent of the senate. The senate must hold a public hearing and vote on each appointment within thirty days of any appointment. If the senate fails to do so, the nomination shall be returned to the commission and the commission shall make the appointment from the list without senate consent. The chief justice shall appoint per diem district court judges as provided by law. The judicial selection commission shall disclose

(Release: 06/22) **JSCR--5**

to the public the list of nominees for each vacancy concurrently with the presentation of each list to the governor or the chief justice, as applicable.

OUALIFICATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT

Justices and judges shall be residents and citizens of the State and of the United States, and licensed to practice law by the supreme court. A justice of the supreme court, a judge of the intermediate appellate court and a judge of the circuit court shall have been so licensed for a period of not less than ten years preceding nomination. A judge of the district court shall have been so licensed for a period of not less than five years preceding nomination. No justice or judge shall, during the term of office, engage in the practice of law, or run for or hold any other office or position of profit under the United States, the State or its political subdivisions.

TENURE; COMPENSATION; RETIREMENT

The term of office of justices and judges of the supreme court, intermediate appellate court and circuit courts shall be ten years. Judges of district courts shall hold office for the periods as provided by law. At least six months prior to the expiration of a justice's or judge's term of office, every justice and judge shall petition the judicial selection commission to be retained in office or shall inform the commission of an intention to retire. If the judicial selection commission determines that the justice or judge should be retained in office, the commission shall renew the term of office of such justice or judge for the period provided by this section or by law. Justices and judges shall be retired upon attaining the age of seventy years. They shall be included in any retirement law of the State.

(Am Const Con 1968 and election Nov 5, 1968; ren and am Const Con 1978 and election Nov 7, 1978; am SB 2182 (1994) and SB 2294 (1994) and election Nov 8, 1994; am HB 1917 (2006) and election Nov 7, 2006; am HB 420 (2014) and election Nov 4, 2014)

JUDICIAL SELECTION COMMISSION

SECTION 4. There shall be a judicial selection commission that shall consist of nine members. The governor shall appoint two members to the commission. No more than one of the two members shall be a licensed attorney. The president of the senate and the speaker of the house of representatives shall each respectively appoint two members to the commission. The chief justice of the supreme court shall appoint one member to the commission. Members in good standing of the bar of the State shall elect two of their number to the commission in an election conducted by the supreme court or its No more than four members of the commission shall be licensed attorneys. At all times, at least one member of the commission shall be a resident of a county other than the City and County of Honolulu. The commission shall be selected and shall operate in a wholly nonpartisan manner. After the initial formation of the commission, elections and appointments to the commission shall be for staggered terms of six years each. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no member of the commission shall serve for more than six years on the commission. Each member of the judicial selection commission shall be a resident of the State and a citizen of the United States. No member shall run for or hold any other elected office under the United States, the State or its political subdivisions. No member shall take an active part in political management or in political No member shall be eligible for campaigns. appointment to judicial office of the State so long as the person is a member of the judicial commission and for a period of three years thereafter. No act of the judicial selection commission shall be valid except by concurrence of the majority of its voting members. The judicial selection commission shall select one of its members to serve as chairperson. The commission shall adopt rules which shall have the force and effect of law. The deliberations of the commission shall be confidential. The legislature shall provide for the staff and operating expenses of the judicial selection commission in a separate budget. No member of the judicial selection commission shall receive any compensation for commission services, but shall be allowed necessary expenses for travel, board and lodging incurred in the performance of commission duties.

JSCR--6 (Release: 06/22)

Appendix JUDICIAL SELECTION COMMISSION RULES

The judicial selection commission shall be attached to the judiciary branch of the state government for purposes of administration.

(Add Const Con 1978 and election Nov 7, 1978; am SB 2513 (1994) and SB 2515 (1994) and election Nov 8, 1994.)

(Release: 06/22) **JSCR--7**

(This page intentionally left blank.)

JSCR--8 (Release: 06/22)